
 

 
Birmingham Shopping District Agenda 
Thursday June 6, 2019 - 8 a.m. 
 
The Community House 
380 South Bates Street, Birmingham, MI  48009 
 
 
 

 
 

1. Call to order and Roll Call of Board 
2. Recognition of Visitors 
3. Approval of Minutes for May 2, 2019 
4. Board Member Comments 
5. Reports: 

a. Finance Report  
b. Executive Director Report – Tighe 
c. Committee Reports: 

i. Special Events – Astrein 
ii. Marketing & Advertising – Pohlod 
iii. Maintenance and Capital Improvements – Quintal 
iv. Business Development – Surnow 
v. Executive Board Report – Hockman 

d. Parking Report – April 
e. Chamber Report 
f. Community House Report 

6. Approval of Vouchers  
7. Unfinished Business 
8. New Business 

a.   Agreement with Renaissance Media for Birmingham Magazine 
b.   Agreement with WXYZ for Cruise Evenut 
c.   Agreement with Detroit Event Company for Cruise Event  

9. Information 
a. Announcements 
b. Letters, Board Attendance & Monthly Meeting Schedule 

10. Public Comments 
11. Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
                                          Birmingham Shopping District Mission Statement 
We strive to provide leadership in marketing, advertising and promotion of the Birmingham Shopping District. 
 
We actively work to promote a district that is exciting, clean, safe and pedestrian-friendly and ensure that the 
district continues to serve as a center for business, service, social and community activities. 
 
Notice: Persons with disabilities that may require assistance for effective participation in this public meeting should contact 
the City Clerk’s Office at the number (248) 530-1880, or (248) 644-5115 (for the hearing impaired) at least one day before 
the meeting to request help in mobility, visual, hearing, or other assistance.  
Las personas con incapacidad que requieren algún tipo de ayuda para la participación en esta sesión pública deben 
ponerse en contacto con la oficina del escribano de la ciudad en el número (248) 530-1800 o al (248) 644-5115 (para las 
personas con incapacidad auditiva) por lo menos un dia antes de la reunión para solicitar ayuda a la movilidad, visual, 
auditiva, o de otras asistencias. (Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964). 



 

5/23/2019            1 

City of Birmingham 
Birmingham Shopping District Proceeding 

Thursday, May 2, 2019 8:00 a.m. 
The Community House 
Birmingham, MI  48009  

 
Minutes of the meeting of the Birmingham Shopping District Board held Thursday, May 2, 2019, at 
8:03 a.m. in The Community House. 
 
1.  CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL OF BOARD  
 

PRESENT: Astrein, Eid, Fehan, Hockman, Kay, Pohlod, Quintal, Roberts, Surnow, Valentine 
 
ABSENT: Solomon 

 
 ALSO PRESENT: David Hohendorf, Cindy Ciura 
 
 ADMINISTRATION: Tighe, Brook, Gerber 
 
 
2.  RECOGNITION OF VISITORS 
  
 
3.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

 
MOTION:  Motion by Fehan, seconded by Astrein to approve the minutes dated April 4, 2019.  

 
   VOTE:  Yeas, 10   Nays, 0   Absent, 1 

 
 
4.  BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
 
5.  REPORTS  
 

a. FINANCE REPORT –  GERBER 
 
Gerber explained that the first report shows a balance of approximately $860,000 with about $70,000 
receivables in current assessment year. There were none collected in April and in mid to late May those still 
outstanding will be reported to the county. 
 
The revenue/expense report through March should be at 75%. It is looking pretty good now at 76%. He 
mentioned that Tighe is entering projections for this year to see if budget adjustments are necessary. 
 
The year to date cash flow is higher than anticipated. There are some variances due to construction costs 
from last year and the fact that assessments are normally billed in December and did not get billed until 
January this year which pushes things back. 
 

b. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT - TIGHE 
 
Tighe updated the board that on May 11th the department heads will be presenting their budgets to 
city commission.  
 
She also shared that she is excited to welcome Corinne Oviedo to the BSD team. 



 

5/23/2019            2 

 
c. COMMITTEE REPORTS:  

 
 
SPECIAL EVENTS - ASTREIN    
 
Astrein reported that two tent companies submitted proposals for the Winter Markt RFP which will be 
discussed more later. 
 
He also shared that the committee would like to activate Thursdays in the downtown area. So, they are 
looking to start on June 20th with some fun evening events and hope that merchants will start staying open 
later. 
 
Day on the Town is set for July 27th and will be bringing back Kids Zone and the Farmers Market opens on 
May 5th. 
 
 
MARKETING & ADVERTISING - POHLOD 
 
Pohlod updated everyone that the Birmingham Magazine has been distributed and was the last edition in the 
current contract. She explained that they shared the one magazine per year idea at the last merchant 
meeting and there were no comments. An RFP for future magazines will be posted very soon. 
 
A conversation was had with HOUR about the past magazines and what expectations would be if they were 
to continue publishing for us. 
 
Paige has started her social media posts and Pohlod said that she is already noticing movement. Astrein 
asked how merchants will interact with Paige. Pohlod responded that Paige had distributed her cards at the 
merchant meeting and will also be stopping at stores to introduce herself. 
 
Tighe shared that the staff team is meeting with Paige every two weeks for updates. Paige will also give an 
update at the next board meeting. 
 
 
MAINTENANCE/CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS - QUINTAL 
 
There was no meeting last month. Quintal shared that we are on schedule for planters to be in for 
Memorial Day. Evergreens will be pulled before that. 
 
The committee has looked at the budget and is exploring the possibility of doing something at the north 
or south end of town for holiday lights. 
 
Tighe gave an update that construction has started on Lot 6. She shared that parking will be available 
but will be impacted. We are working with the APC to provide valet service throughout construction. 
 
Valentine added that the project will add approximately 37 parking spaces and will also improve 
pedestrian access to the river and increase lighting. The project is expected to last 7-9 weeks. The lot 
will continue to be available for the Farmers Market each Sunday. 
 
 
BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT - SURNOW 
 



 

5/23/2019            3 

There was no meeting in April. Surnow reported that fab’rik, a national retailer, will be going into the old Art 
Loft space. The strategic and methodical approach they have been taking for recruitment is working. And, the 
new recruiter is now on board to help with future efforts. 
 
There will be a broker/owner roundtable next week. Updates will be given on new developments. 
 
The ICSC conference will be held in May. Tighe and Ciura are working to set-up meetings. 
 
Tighe formally introduced Cindy Ciura to the board. She said that Ciura has already been productive creating 
retail lists and looking at different areas of town strategically. 
 
Ciura explained that she is very picky about marketing materials. So, she has been working to make our 
pieces appear more upscale as the first impression is very important. She said that she is excited that 9 
prospects have said that they are interested in meeting and want to know more about specific sites. She is 
very encouraged by that and is excited to be here. 
 
Tighe shared that we will be promoting BSD gift certificates as good gift options for Mother’s Day, graduation 
and Father’s Day. 
 
Valentine extended kudos to Tighe and Surnow and the committee for securing the new retailer. Fehan 
agreed that this success validates the process. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE BOARD REPORT  
 
No report given 
 
 

d. PARKING REPORT - VALENTINE 
 
Valentine gave an update that SP+ has been selected to continue to operate the parking structures, however, 
the scope of work has changed. 
 
There will be a new app that will show available parking in the structures as well as on the streets. There will 
be a meeting on Monday to get bond authorization. 
 
Astrein asked if the sensors on the parking meters are working. Valentine explained that although they are 
functioning, they are not being used for enforcement. 
 
 

e. CHAMBER REPORT 
 
No report given. 
 

f. COMMUNITY HOUSE REPORT 
 
There was no report from The Community House. 
 
 
6.  APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS 

 
MOTION:  Motion by Astrein, seconded by Quintal to approve the vouchers, as submitted, dated May 
2, 2019.  
 



 

5/23/2019            4 

VOTE:   Yeas, 10   Nays, 0   Absent, 1 
 
 

7.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
   
 
8.  NEW BUSINESS 
      a. Agreement with Wahl Tents for Winter Markt Tents 
 

Pohlod shared that the committee chose this company for several reasons including that they will be 
buying new tents for us. It will be a longer contract but that will be better because the new, hole free, 
tents will help with vendor retention. Kay added that this will also lock the price in for us for five years. 

 
MOTION:  Motion by Astrein, seconded by Fehan to approve the agreement with Wahl Tents for 
Winter Markt Tents for the 2019 Winter Markt, conditional upon receipt of signatures and insurance 
from contractor. 
 
VOTE:   Yeas, 10   Nays, 0   Absent, 1 

 
b.   Agreements for Santa Claus Performances 2019 
 
Pohlod explained that we will be using the same Santa (for all but 3 shifts) that was so well 
received last year. 
 

MOTION:  Motion by Astrein, seconded by Fehan to approve the Santa Claus agreements 
with Randyl Lee and Daniel Suttkus for Santa Claus performances during the 2019 holiday 
season, conditional upon receipt of signatures and insurance from respective performers. 
 
VOTE:   Yeas, 10   Nays, 0   Absent, 1 

 
c.   Top Hats and Tails Carriage Rides Agreement 
 

MOTION:  Motion by Astrein, seconded by Pohlod to approve the agreement with Top Hats 
and Tails Carriage Company for horse carriage service for the 2019 holiday season, 
conditional upon receipt of signatures and insurance from contractor. 

 
VOTE:   Yeas, 10   Nays, 0   Absent, 1 

 
 

9.   INFORMATION 
       a.  Retail Activity 
       b.  Announcements  
       c.  Letters, Board Attendance & Monthly Meeting Schedule 
               
10.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Pohlod shared that the next marketing committee meeting date has not been confirmed yet. It will be after 
the RFP closes. 
 
Valentine reminded everyone that the Master Planning process is ongoing. Charrettes will be held 
beginning May 14 and concluding on May 21.  
 
Tighe said that she will be participating in Museum talks about Downtown – Then & Now on May 9th at the 
library at 7 p.m. 



 

5/23/2019            5 

 
11.  ADJOURNMENT – 8:50 A.M.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Jaimi Brook (back-up notes on file) 
 

















 

 
Special Events Committee 
May 2019 
 
Members: Astrein (Chair), Fehan, Kay, Pohlod and Solomon 
 
Staff: Tighe, Brook 
 

 
1. No meeting was held in May 2019 

            
 

2. Birmingham Farmers Market 
a. The FM season is off to a great start with 50 vendors and over 3200 attendees for 

Opening Day on May 5, 2019.  
 

3. Movie Nights 
a. We are excited about our first Movie Night of the season that scheduled on June 14 – 

we will be showing Zootopia and have asked the Birmingham Police Department to 
bring a few vehicles over for kids to explore during the pre-show time. 

b. MN sponsorships are currently at $14,850 - up from $9,100 last year. 
 

4. Day on the Town 
a. Merchant registration forms for Day on the Town will be available at the end of May. 

 
 
Upcoming Events 
May 5 – October 27 – Birmingham Farmers Market 17th Season 
June 14, July 12, August 23 – Movie Nights 
July 27 – Day on the Town 
August 17 – Birmingham Cruise Event 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NEXT MEETING: Friday, June 7, 2019 at 8:30 a.m. 
 
2018-19 Budget:  $200,000 
Remaining balance after May vouchers:  $50,243 



   

 
Marketing & Advertising Committee Meeting  
May 23, 2019 
 
Members:  Pohlod (Chair), Benkert, Champagne, Eid, Kay, 
Lundberg 
 
Staff:  Tighe, Gamboa 
 

 
 

1. Welcome and Introductions 
PRESENT: Benkert, Kay, Lundberg, Pohlod 
ABSENT: Champagne, Eid 
ADMINISTRATION: Gamboa, Tighe 
GUESTS: none 
 

2. Birmingham Magazine 
The committee reviewed bids received for printing, production, mailing and advertising 
services for the Birmingham Magazine for a two-year period (one issue per year), with an 
optional renewal for one year. Bids were received from Community Publishing & Marketing, 
Renaissance Media Solutions and HOUR Media. The committee interviewed representatives 
from two publishers the BSD has never worked with: Community Publishing & Marketing and 
Renaissance Media Solutions. All three publishers were scored on the following factors: ability 
to provide services as outlined; related experience, background and personnel qualifications; 
quality of materials proposed; overall costs and references. Renaissance Media scored the 
highest and a recommendation to move forward with them will be presented to the BSD Board 
at their June meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NEXT MEETING: Thursday June 13, 2019 at 8:30 a.m. 
 
2018-19 Budget:  $150,000 
Remaining balance after May vouchers:  $2,377 
 
Magazine 2018-19 Budget:  $85,000 
Remaining balance after May vouchers:  $8,485.11 



 
Maintenance/Capital Improvement Committee  
May 14, 2019 

 
Members: Quintal (Chair), Fehan, Pohlod, Roberts, Ceresnie 
 
Staff:  Tighe, Jurek, Laird, Wood 
 

 

1. Flowers and planters: 
a. Flowers and plants were installed in the city May 22-23, 2019. 

 
2. Holiday decorating:  

a. The committee met with Michigan Holiday Lighting to learn about their holiday lighting 
options. Michigan Holiday Lighting is going to work with one of its vendors, Artistic 
Designs, to obtain pole design ideas and pricing. The committee wants to focus on 
North Old Woodward this holiday season. 
 

3. Valet: 
a. BSD considering offering valet parking on North Old Woodward to support Parking Lot 

6 construction and assist merchants during busy Mother’s Day and spring season. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NEXT MEETING:  Tuesday, June 11, 2019 at 8:00 a.m. in City Hall  
 
2018-19 Budget:  $70,000  
Remaining balance after May vouchers:  $5,536 
 
Snow removal 2018-19 Budget:  $59,000  
Remaining balance after May vouchers:  $42.99 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1. Retention and growth 
a. Tighe presented group with a recap of the merchant meeting held Wednesday, April 

17, 2019. 
b. The BSD continues to promote Birmingham Gift Certificates for Mother’s Day, Father’s 

Day, and graduate gifts. 
c. Tighe discussed the details she learned about Uber and Lyft incentive programs. 

 
2. Tenant recruitment process 

a. Tighe provided a summary of the ICSC trip. 
b. Committee reviewed updated marketing materials for BD. 
c. Tighe provided a recap on the Broker/Property owner round table May 8, 2019 at 

Startup Nation. 
d. Committee reviewed pipeline report.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NEXT MEETING: Thursday, June 27, 2019 at 8:30 AM 

2018-19 Budget:  $100,000  
Remaining after May vouchers:  $55,483 

       

Business Development Committee Meeting 
May 30, 2019 

Members: Surnow (Chair), Hockman, Quintal, McKenzie 

Staff: Tighe 



































Birmingham Principal Shopping District Board 
Voucher List For: 06/06/2019 

Early Rele Vendor Description Account Amount 

 

ART/DESIGN GROUP LTD ARTWORK FOR MOVIE NIGHTS, 
FARMERS MARKET AND GENERAL 

MARKETING & ADVERTISING 6,181.75 

 
ARTECH PRINTING INC CORINNE'S BUSINESS CARDS OPERATING SUPPLIES 88.00 

 

BEIER HOWLETT P.C. LEGAL FEES OTHER LEGAL 29.33 

BIRMINGHAM BLOOMFIELD SPONSORSHIP FOR SEVERAL PUBLIC RELATIONS 2,000.00 
CHAMBER 

BLOOMFIELD HILLS 
SCHOOLS 

EVENTS 

TRAVELING FARM AT CORN 
FESTIVAL 8/11/19 

 

SPECIAL EVENTS 

 

700.00 

 
BS&A SOFTWARE, INC TRAINING FOR INGRID TRAINING 410.00 

 

C & G PUBLISHING INC. FARMERS MARKET ADVERTISING SPECIAL EVENTS 477.40 
 

CC CONSULTING LLC JUNE MONTHLY RETAINER FOR 
RETAIL SERVICES 

TENANT RECRUITMENT 2,083.33 

 
CONCOURS D'ELEGANCE 
OF AMERICA 

COSTAR REALTY 
INFORMATION, INC 

CRAIN'S DETROIT 

CRITERION PICTURES 

DETROIT JEWISH NEWS 

ADVERTISING FOR THE CRUISE 

ON LINE TENANT RECRUITMENT 

ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP 

JULY MOVIE RENTAL 

FARMERS MARKET ADVERTISING 

SPECIAL EVENTS 
 

TENANT RECRUITMENT 
 

MEMBERSHIP & DUES 

SPECIAL EVENTS 

SPECIAL EVENTS 

500.00 
 

680.00 
 

79.00 

375.00 

400.00 
 

DORNBOS SIGN & SAFETY 3 NEW POSTS FOR FARMERS SPECIAL EVENTS 281.00 
INC MARKET SIGN 

 
DOWNTOWN PUBLICATIONS GENERAL AND BFM ADVERTISING 
INC 

MARKETING & ADVERTISING 656.00 

EDWARD MORYKWAS PHOTOGRAPHY SERVICES SPECIAL EVENTS 200.00 
 

ENTERCOM 
COMMUNICATIONS CORP 

ETHNIC ARTWORK 

GENERAL ADVERTISING 

FARMERS MARKET T-SHIRTS 

MARKETING & ADVERTISING 

SPECIAL EVENTS 

1,200.00 
 

253.00 

EVEREVE 

GACO SOURCING 

GIFT CERTIFICATE 

FARMERS MARKET TOTE BAGS 

GIFT CERTIFICATES 

SPECIAL EVENTS 

25.00 

1,516.40 
 

GREAT OUTDOOR MOVIES DEPOSIT FOR AUDIO VISUAL 
SERVICES FOR AUGUST MOVIE 
NIGHT 8/23 

SPECIAL EVENTS 3,050.00 

 
HOUR MEDIA LLC SPRING/SUMMER MAGAZINE PRINTING PSD MAGAZINE 26,836.89 

 

ICSC 

JOHN HARTWIG 

FULL PAGE AD 

PERFORMANCE AT BFM 06/16/19 

TENANT RECRUITMENT 

SPECIAL EVENTS 

4,500.00 

100.00 
 

LOGICAL SOLUTIONS 
ENTERPRISE INC 

SUMMER CARD EVENTS/VALET MARKETING & ADVERTISING 399.00 

MOMMY NETWORK OF 
MICHIGAN 

MOVIE NIGHT ADVERTISING MARKETING & ADVERTISING 1,012.50 



Birmingham Principal Shopping District Board 
Voucher List For: 06/06/2019 

Early Rele Vendor Description Account Amount 

 

OFFICE DEPOT INC MISC OFFICE SUPPLIES OPERATING SUPPLIES 478.53 
 

PAIGE LEVENTIS JUNE SOCIAL MEDIA SERVICES 
PAYMENT 2 OF 2 

MARKETING & ADVERTISING 2,483.00 

 
SARALEE GORDON FARMERS MARKET LOGO REFRESH MARKETING & ADVERTISING 250.00 

 

SIGNS-N-DESIGNS INC BANNERS FOR BFM  SPECIAL EVENTS 1,525.00 
SP+ CORPORATION  EMPLOYEE PARKING JUNE OTHER CONTRACTUAL 

SERVICE 
300.00 

TRIPLE NICKEL  BONUS BUCKS  MARKETING & ADVERTISING 400.00 
VERIZON 
WIRELESS 

 INGRID AND JAIMI 
PHONES 

CELL TELEPHONE 101.24 

WHISKEY ENTERTAINMENT BFM PERFORMANCE 6/30 
LLC 

SPECIAL EVENTS 275.00 

WORRY FREE INC REMOVAL OF PINE TREES FROM 
PLANTERS 

MAINTENANCE SHOPPING 
DIST 

420.00 

 
* INGRID TIGHE BUSINESS LUNCH  TENANT RECRUITMENT 269.07 
* INGRID TIGHE TRAVEL EXPENSES FOR ICSC 

RECON 5/19-5/22 
TENANT RECRUITMENT 1,411.97 

* INGRID 
 
TIGHE 

 
MILEAGE FOR BS&A 
TRAINING 

 
BUDGET 

 
TRAINING 

 
201.84 

* INGRID TIGHE LUNCH MEETING  TENANT RECRUITMENT 90.26 

    Total: $ 62,239.51 

=========== 
 

 

 
Journal Entries 

        Great American Business Products – Paw Pal Bags                                                                             $                237.50 
        Postage Nov-April                                                                                                                                          1,478.59 
        ACT! Database software for BSD                                                                                                                     1,620.00 
        DTE – Electricity at BFM                                                                                                                                     49.35 
        ICSC – Ingrid Conference July 17-18                                                                                                                  200.00 
        Petty Cash – Miscellaneous                                                                                                                               101.66 
                                                                                                                                                           _________________ 
           Total Journal Entries                                                                                                                   $             3,687.10 
                                                                                                                                                           _________________ 
           TOTAL VOUCHERS AND JOURNAL ENTRIES                                                                                  $            65,926.61 
                                                                                                                                                          ============= 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Birmingham Principal Shopping District Board 
Voucher List For: 06/06/2019 

Early Rele Vendor Description Account Amount 

 

 
*Items marked with an asterisk were submitted in advance and prior to board approval 

 
 
 
                                                                            Board Chair _____________________________________ 
 
 
                                                                         Date ___________________________ 



1 
 
 

  MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
DATE:   June 6, 2019 
 
TO:   Birmingham Shopping District Board 
 
FROM:  Ingrid Tighe, Executive Director 
 
SUBJECT:  8A Renaissance Media Agreement for Birmingham Magazine 

  
 
 
The BSD Marketing Committee reviewed submissions from the recent RFP for the 
Birmingham Magazine and is recommending approval of the proposal from Renaissance 
Media. The BSD received three bids from HOUR Media, Renaissance Media Solutions, and 
Community Publishing and Marketing.  The contract is for two years, printing one large 
magazine each holiday season. The production of the magazine, plus direct mail 
distribution, will cost approximately $40,000. The previous contract with HOUR Magazine 
cost the BSD approximately $75,000 - $80,000 per year for both production of three, 
smaller magazines and hand-delivery of the publication to homes.  
 
Suggested Action: 
 
To approve the agreement with Renaissance Media for the production and 
distribution of the Birmingham Magazine in 2019 and 2020, conditional upon 
receipt of signatures. 
 
 
 
 
 

























1 
 
 

  MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
DATE:   June 6, 2019 
 
TO:   Birmingham Shopping District Board 
 
FROM:  Ingrid Tighe, Executive Director 
 
SUBJECT:  8B WXYZ Agreement for Cruise Event   
 
 
WXYZ Channel 7 will be returning to the Birmingham Cruise to broadcast live from Haynes 
and Woodward Avenue. The broadcast is syndicated in markets nationwide. In return for 
the space, Channel 7 provides free production and airtime for BSD commercials that air 
in the summer and over the holidays.  This is the third year of a three-year agreement 
that started in 2017 and continues through 2019. Either party has the right to terminate 
the agreement with written notice. 
 
Suggested Action: 
 
To approve the agreement with WXYZ Channel 7 for the Birmingham Cruise 
Event, conditional upon receipt of signatures and insurance. 
 
 
 
 
 



WXYZ-TV Sponsorship Agreement (2017-2019) - Page 1 

SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT 
 

This Agreement, made this ______ day of ___________, 2019 by and between the 
Downtown Birmingham Principal Shopping District, having its principal municipal 
office at 151 Martin Street, Birmingham, MI (hereinafter referred to as “PSD”), and 
WXYZ-TV, having its principal office at 20777 West 10 Mile Road, Southfield, MI 
48075 (hereinafter referred to as “SPONSOR”), provides as follows: 

 
WHEREAS, the PSD is hosting the 2019 Birmingham Cruise Event to be held on 
Saturday, August 17, 2019, hereinafter referred to as “Event”. For purposes of this 
Agreement, the terms CITY or City shall refer to the City of Birmingham, and 

 
WHEREAS, SPONSOR desires to be a sponsor of this Birmingham Event, which it 
will do in accordance with its best and most efficient methods and highest standards 
that it has evolved from its experience and which the PSD desires to be conducted in 
a professional and advantageous fashion, under the terms and conditions hereinafter 
stated.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the respective agreements and 
undertakings herein contained, the parties agree as follows: 

 
1. EVENT. “Event” shall refer to the activities provided by the SPONSOR in 

accordance with this Agreement. In accordance with the City’s permitted use to the 
PSD, SPONSOR hereby agrees to coordinate activities related to the Event which 
shall commence at 8:00 a.m. on Saturday, August 17, 2019, and which shall 
conclude at 7:00 p.m. on the same day. SPONSOR may commence set up for the 
Event no earlier than 1:00 p.m. on Wednesday, August 14, 2019 for the portion of 
the Designated Location located on Haynes Street. For the remaining portions of 
the Designated Location, SPONSOR may commence set up no earlier than 8:00 
a.m. on Friday, August 16, 2019. SPONSOR shall coordinate all set-up activities 
with the PSD and the City so as to minimize the impact on nearby businesses. All 
vehicles, staging, displays, tents, promotional materials and other items shall by 
removed from the Designated Location as soon as possible, but in no event later 
than 12:00 p.m. on Sunday, August 20, 2019. All public streets must be cleared 
immediately following the Event. 

 
2. COMPENSATION. For the 2019 Event, SPONSOR agrees that it will 

provide to the PSD the following compensation upon the signing of this Agreement 
for the right to use the Designated Location and to conduct activities in accordance 
with the terms of this Agreement: 
 

A. SPONSOR will provide the following media support to the Birmingham 
Principal Shopping District: 

I. Additional mentions about Birmingham for two weeks prior to and 
during the Dream Cruise. 

II. Birmingham events throughout the year featured in the Around 
Town segment and on WXYZ.com website. 



WXYZ-TV Sponsorship Agreement (2017-2019) - Page 2 

III. Airtime for up to thirty (30) 30 second spots, produced by the 
Birmingham PSD or WXYZ, available to be used anytime between 
January and September, with approval from WXYZ. 

IV. Production of up to (2) two 30-second spots for the PSD’s use on 
WXYZ, online or other broadcast outlets. 

V. Advertising presence on WXYZ.com during summer event season 
from May through September. 
 

3. LOCATIONS & ACTIVITIES. “Designated Location” shall refer to the location 
on the map identified as “Exhibit A” attached hereto. The access point for the 
exhibit shall be determined in cooperation between the SPONSOR and the PSD in 
order to ensure suitable access to the Designated Location by the SPONSOR while 
maintaining sufficient access for emergency vehicles and other sponsor displays. 
SPONSOR will work with the PSD to ensure placement of the exhibit will not 
impede access for emergency vehicles on the day of the event. The PSD retains 
usage rights for streets, sidewalks, easements or other public right-of-ways and 
SPONSOR is not permitted to use them unless specifically provided for herein. The 
PSD and the CITY may make such other uses of the locations outlined herein, 
which are not inconsistent with SPONSOR’s activities in connection with this 
Agreement.  

 
A. SPONSOR is permitted to use the Designated Location for an informational 

display, subject to meeting all City regulations. This exhibit may include the 
following elements: 
 

I. SPONSOR broadcast display area. The location may be used for live 
broadcasts on the Friday before the EVENT, August 16, 2019, and on 
the day of the EVENT, Saturday, August 17, 2019 between the hours 
of 12:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m., subject to compliance with all applicable 
City Ordinances and regulations; 
 

II. SPONSOR is permitted to display SPONSOR’s logo banners within 
Designated Area, subject to meeting city regulations. 
 

III. SPONSOR is permitted to display one (1) banner, promoting the 
Event and its display, on an adjacent building, subject to obtaining 
written permission from the property owner(s) to do so and subject 
to meeting all state and city regulations. 
 

IV. SPONSOR shall have the ability to sell SPONSOR wearables within 
the designated location subject to obtaining, at its sole expense, the 
required City of Birmingham permits. 
 

V. Other similar display elements as agreed upon, in writing, by the 
parties. 

 
 



WXYZ-TV Sponsorship Agreement (2017-2019) - Page 3 

B. OTHER SPONSORSHIP TERMS 
  

I. SPONSOR agrees that all shows, displays, and performances for the 
Event will be open venues at no charge to the public, except for the 
area(s) clearly designated as “VIP” areas on the site plan provided to 
the PSD pursuant to Section 3(C)(I)(a) of this Agreement. 
 

II. SPONSOR shall have its logo on the back of Birmingham Cruise 
Event volunteer t-shirts. SPONSOR must provide an electronic 
version of the logo artwork upon the signing of this Agreement. 

 
III. SPONSOR will have its logo and a link from the Birmingham Cruise 

Event web page (currently www.birminghamcruiseevent.com) to its 
corporate website. Link to be provided by SPONSOR. 
 

IV. SPONSOR shall obtain, at its sole expense, any required permits 
from the City. 
 

V. SPONSOR shall have the opportunity to survey event patrons within 
Designated Location. 

 
VI. SPONSOR shall have the opportunity to distribute company 

promotional materials to event patrons in the Designated Location. 
 

VII. The PSD shall work with, and provide full cooperation to, SPONSOR 
to meet the requirements for obtaining any and all necessary City 
permits. 
 

VIII. Any set-up within the Designated Location shall have a minimum 
setback of 10 feet from the Woodward Avenue frontage. This 
restricted area shall be roped off to allow pedestrian traffic through 
this area. 
 

IX. If so desired, SPONSOR may provide, at its own expense, security 
personnel to be present during the period SPONSOR display items 
are located at the designated location under the terms of this 
agreement. Security personnel are required to meet with the 
Birmingham Police Department at least seven (7) days prior to the 
Event. 
 

C. COORDINATION OF ACTIVITIES - SPONSOR shall provide all staff, 
workers, performers, vehicles, equipment, fuel, materials, parts, supplies, 
wages, and insurance for its performance under this agreement. SPONSOR 
shall provide a designated contact overseeing the event, including a 
telephone number at which the contact may be reached at all times during 
the event, including set-up and removal times. 
 

http://www.birminghamcruiseevent.com/


WXYZ-TV Sponsorship Agreement (2017-2019) - Page 4 

I. SPONSOR shall provide the PSD with the following information no 
later than the last Friday in July: 
 

a. A detailed site plan for all activities planned for the Event, 
including any vendors or entertainers. 

b. Any other reports, as reasonably requested, related to 
activities taking place as part of the SPONSOR’s activities 
under this Agreement. 
 

II. The PSD shall designate a representative to coordinate all of its 
activities in the performance of this Agreement. A designated PSD 
representative shall have the right to inspect and verify the activities 
of the SPONSOR pursuant to this Agreement. 

a. At its discretion, the PSD may schedule a coordination 
meeting to include SPONSOR and any other event sponsors 
which may have adjacent displays. Such a meeting would be 
for the purposes of coordinating activities among the 
sponsors.  

 
4. TERM. The term of this Agreement shall commence upon the execution of 

this agreement and shall continue until October 31, 2019. Provided that an Event 
is planned and scheduled for 2020, and provided the PSD applies for and obtains 
a special event permit in accordance with Birmingham City Code Chapter 98, 
Article VI, SPONSOR shall have the first right of refusal for use of the designated 
location for the 2020 Event by providing advance notice to the PSD of its desire to 
do so no later than November 1, 2019. The parties may also agree to amend this 
agreement as it relates to the permitted activities and compensation for such use 
of the property for future events. 
 

5. TERMINATION. In the event that (a) the PSD terminates this Agreement, for 
any reason whatsoever, subsequent to payment being made by SPONSOR herein 
for any year, but prior to the Event, or (b) the Event is canceled for any reason, the 
PSD shall promptly reimburse SPONSOR the full amount of SPONSOR’s payment, 
minus any reasonable expenses incurred by the PSD to satisfy the terms of this 
Agreement. In no event may the PSD terminate this Agreement with less than 30 
days’ prior written notice unless the Event is being canceled entirely. Either party 
may terminate the Agreement for material breach by the other party without cure 
within 10 days. 
 

6. FAIR PROCUREMENT OPPORTUNITY. Procurement for the City of 
Birmingham will be handled in a manner providing fair opportunity for all 
businesses. This will be accomplished without abrogation or sacrifice of quality and 
as determined to be in the best interest of the City of Birmingham. 

 
7. INSURANCE. The SPONSOR shall not commence work under this 

Agreement until it has, at its sole expense, obtained the insurance required under 
this paragraph. All coverages shall be with insurance companies licensed and 



WXYZ-TV Sponsorship Agreement (2017-2019) - Page 5 

admitted to do business in the State of Michigan. All coverages shall be with 
carriers reasonably acceptable to the CITY and PSD.  

 
A. Workers' Compensation Insurance: SPONSOR shall procure and 

maintain during the life of this contract, Workers' Compensation Insurance, 
including Employers Liability Coverage, in accordance with all applicable 
statutes of the State of Michigan. 

 
B. Commercial General Liability Insurance:  SPONSOR shall procure 

and maintain during the life of this contract, Commercial General Liability 
Insurance on an "Occurrence Basis" with limits of liability not less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence combined single limit, Personal Injury, Bodily 
Injury and Property Damage. Coverage shall include the following 
extensions: (A) Contractual Liability; (B) Products and Completed 
Operations; (C) Deletion of all Explosion, Collapse and Underground (XCU) 
Exclusions, if applicable. 

 
C. Motor Vehicle Liability:  SPONSOR shall procure and maintain 

during the life of this contract Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance, including 
all applicable no-fault coverages, with limits of liability of not less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence combined single limit Bodily Injury and 
Property Damage. Coverage shall include all owned vehicles, all non-owned 
vehicles, and all hired vehicles. 

 
D. Additional Insured:  Commercial General Liability and Motor 

Vehicle Liability Insurance, as described above, shall name the following as 
Additional Insureds: The City of Birmingham, The Birmingham Principal 
Shopping District (“PSD”), and the Michigan Department of Transportation 
(“MDOT”), including all elected and appointed officials, all employee and 
volunteers, all boards, commissions and/or authorities and board 
members, including employees and volunteers thereof. This coverage shall 
be primary to any other coverage that may be available to the additional 
insured for all losses for which Sponsor has indemnified the Additional 
Insureds, whether any other available coverage by primary, contributing or 
excess.  

 
E. Cancellation Notice:  Sponsor shall provide a thirty day notice of 

cancellation to: Finance Director, City of Birmingham, P.O. Box 3001, 151 
Martin Street, Birmingham, MI 48012-3001. 

 
F. Proof of Insurance Coverage: SPONSOR shall provide the CITY and 

PSD at the time the Agreement is returned for execution, Certificates of 
Insurance reasonably acceptable to the CITY and PSD, as listed below. 

 
I. Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Workers' 

Compensation Insurance; 



WXYZ-TV Sponsorship Agreement (2017-2019) - Page 6 

II. Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Commercial General 
Liability Insurance; 

III. Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Vehicle Liability 
Insurance. 

 
G. Coverage Expiration: If any of the above coverages expire during the 

term of this contract, SPONSOR shall deliver renewal certificates and/or 
policies to the CITY and PSD at least (10) days prior to the expiration date. 

 
H. Maintaining Insurance: The SPONSOR also agrees to provide all 

insurance coverage as specified. Upon failure of the SPONSOR to obtain or 
maintain such insurance coverage for the term of the agreement, the CITY 
and PSD may, at its option, purchase such coverage and subtract the cost of 
obtaining such coverage from the contract amount. In obtaining such 
coverage, the CITY and PSD shall have no obligation to procure the most 
cost-effective coverage but may contract with any insurer for such coverage.  

 
8. INDEMNIFICATION. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the SPONSOR 

and any entity or person for whom the SPONSOR is legally liable, agrees to be 
responsible for any liability, defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, and hold 
harmless the City of Birmingham, The Birmingham Principal Shopping District 
(“PSD”), and the Michigan Department of Transportation (“MDOT”), their elected 
and appointed officials, employees and volunteers and others working on behalf of 
the City of Birmingham, the PSD, and/or MDOT against any and all claims, 
demands, suits, or loss, including all costs and reasonable attorney fees connected 
therewith, and for any damages which may be asserted, claimed or recovered 
against or from the City of Birmingham, the PSD, and/or MDOT, its elected and 
appointed officials, employees, volunteers or others working on behalf of the City 
of Birmingham, the PSD, and/or MDOT, by reason of personal injury, including 
bodily injury and death and/or property damage, including loss of use thereof, 
which arises out of SPONSOR's acts or omissions under this Agreement. Such 
responsibility shall not be construed as liability for personal injury or damage 
caused by or resulting from the sole act or omission of its elected or appointed 
officials, employees, volunteers or others working on behalf of the City of 
Birmingham, the PSD, and/or MDOT. 
 

 
9. CONDITION OF PROPERTY. SPONSOR shall keep the designated locations 

in a safe, clean and proper condition. SPONSOR shall reimburse or otherwise pay 
the CITY for the repair of all damage to city property over and above ordinary wear 
and tear as a result of SPONSOR’s activities during the Event. SPONSOR shall at 
its sole cost and expense, promptly remove all property from the designated 
locations not belonging to the PSD including, but not limited to, debris, materials 
and/or other equipment, and promptly restore the designated locations to 
substantially the condition existing prior to the date set-up commenced, subject to 
reasonable wear and tear. SPONSOR shall use the City’s property at its own risk 
and assumes all risk of loss resulting from such use. SPONSOR certifies, represents 



WXYZ-TV Sponsorship Agreement (2017-2019) - Page 7 

and declares that it has no title in or to the designated locations nor to any portion 
thereof, and has not, does not, and will not claim such title nor any easement over 
the designated locations. 

 
10. NO ALCOHOL. No alcohol may be served in any location in the CITY 

as a part of the performance of the Event. The Event is strictly non-alcoholic. 
 

11. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. Each party shall, in performing this Agreement, 
adhere to and comply with all laws, ordinances, rules and regulations, without 
limitation. SPONSOR shall secure all licenses and permits as may be required. 
 

12. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. As required by City ordinance section 2-287, if, 
after the effective date of this Agreement, any official of the City or PSD or spouse, 
child, or parent, of such official shall become directly or indirectly interested in this 
Agreement, the PSD shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without 
further liability if the disqualification has not been removed within thirty (30) days 
after the City has given SPONSOR notice of the disqualifying interest. Ownership 
of less than one percent (1%) of the stock or other equity interest in a corporation 
or partnership shall not be a disqualifying interest. Employment shall be a 
disqualifying interest only if such employment is in an administrative, managerial 
or executive capacity in which the employee could in any way influence the 
decisions of the business entity with regard to the contract proposals or other 
transactions. 

 
13. ASSIGNMENT & MODIFICATION. This Agreement shall be binding upon 

the successors and assigns of the parties hereto, but no such assignment shall be 
made without the prior written consent of the other party. This Agreement may 
only be modified in writing, signed by both parties. 

 
14. DISPUTE RESOLUTION. Any controversy or claim arising out of or 

relating to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, shall be settled either by 
commencement of a suit in Oakland County Circuit Court, the 48th District Court 
or by arbitration. If both parties elect to have the dispute resolved by arbitration, 
it shall be settled pursuant to Chapter 50 of the Revised Judicature Act for the State 
of Michigan and administered by the American Arbitration Association with one 
arbitrator being used, or three arbitrators in the event any party’s claim exceeds 
$1,000,000. Each party shall bear its own costs and expenses and an equal share 
of the arbitrator’s and administrative fees of arbitration. Such arbitration shall 
qualify as statutory arbitration pursuant to MCL§600.5001 et. seq., and the 
Oakland County Circuit Court or any court having jurisdiction shall render 
judgment upon the award of the arbitrator made pursuant to this Agreement. The 
laws of the State of Michigan shall govern this Agreement, and the arbitration shall 
take place in Oakland County, Michigan. In the event that the parties elect not to 
have the matter in dispute arbitrated, any dispute between the parties may be 
resolved by the filing of a suit in the Oakland County Circuit Court or the 48th 
District Court. 
 



WXYZ-TV Sponsorship Agreement (2017-2019) - Page 8 

15. NOTICES. All notices required to be sent by this Agreement shall be sent to the 
following addresses: 

 
PSD     
Ingrid Tighe 
Executive Director 
151 Martin Street 
P.O. Box 3001 
Birmingham, MI 48012 
Ph: 248.530.1250 

SPONSOR  
Mr. Mike Murri 
WXYZ/WMYD Vice-President and 
General Manager 
20777 West 10 Mile Road 
Southfield, MI 48075 
Ph: 248.827.9221 
 

16. FORCE MAJEURE. Neither party shall be liable in damages or have the 
right to terminate this Agreement for any default hereunder if such default is 
caused by conditions beyond its control including, but not limited to Acts of God, 
governmental restrictions imposed for heightened security measures, wars, 
insurrections and/or other cause beyond the reasonable control of the party whose 
performance is affected. 

 
17. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This document contains the entire Agreement between 

the parties hereto and there are no inducements or representations leading to the 
execution hereof except as herein contained. 

 



WXYZ-TV Sponsorship Agreement (2017-2019) - Page 9 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said parties have caused this Agreement to be 
executed as of the date and year above written. 

 
 

WITNESSES:     SPONSOR 
 

_______________________  _________________________ 
 
 

      By: Mike Murri 
WXYZ/WMYD Vice-President and 
General Manager 

 
 

PRINCIPAL SHOPPING DISTRICT OF 
THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

      By:  _________________________ 
PSD Chairman 

 
APPROVED: 

 
 

_______________________  _________________________ 
City Manager      City Attorney 
(Approved as to substance)   (Approved as to form) 

 
 

_________________________  _________________________ 
PSD Director     Director of Finance 
(Approved as to substance)   (Approved as to financial obligation) 
 



1 
 
 

  MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
DATE:   June 6, 2019 
 
TO:   Birmingham Shopping District Board 
 
FROM:  Ingrid Tighe, Executive Director 
 
SUBJECT:  8C Detroit Event Company Agreement for Cruise Event  
 
 
To celebrate the 25th annual event of the Birmingham Cruise, the BSD has reserved two 
bands, “Collision 6” and “Cancel Monday,” managed by Detroit Event Company. The 
bands will perform from 12:00 PM – 5:00 PM playing a variety of cover music from the 
different decades.  
 
Suggested Action: 
 
To approve the agreement with Detroit Event Company to provide live music 
for the Birmingham Dream Cruise Event, conditional upon receipt of signatures 
and insurance. 
 
 
 
 
 

















Name of Board: Year: 2019
Members Required for Quorum: 7

MEMBER NAME JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC
SPEC 
MTG

SPEC 
MTG

Total 
Mtgs. 
Att.

Total 
Absent

Percent 
Attended 
Available

REGULAR MEMBERS
Richard Astrein P P P P P 5 0 100%
Samy Eid P P A P P 4 1 80%
Doug Fehan A A P P P 3 2 60%
Geoffrey Hockman P A P A P 3 2 60%
Zachary Kay P P P P P 5 0 100%
Amy Pohlod P A P P P 4 1 80%
Steve Quintal P P P P P 5 0 100%
Bill Roberts P P P P P 5 0 100%
Judy Solomon P P P P A 4 1 80%
Sam Surnow A P P P P 4 1 80%
Joe Valentine P P P P P 5 0 100%

0 0 #DIV/0!
Reserved 0 0 #DIV/0!
Reserved 0 0 #DIV/0!
Present or Available 9 8 10 10 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

KEY: A = Member absent
P = Member present or available

CP = Member available, but meeting canceled  for lack of quorum
CA = Member not available and meeting was canceled for lack of quorum
NA = Member not appointed at that time

NM = No meeting scheduled that month
CM = Meeting canceled for lack of business items

Department Head Signature

CITY BOARD/COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE RECORD

Birmingham Shopping District



 
 
 
 

Birmingham Shopping 
District 151 Martin Street 
Birmingham, MI  48009 
248-530-1200 

 
 
 
 

 
BSD COMMITTEES 

MONTHLY MEETING SCHEDULE 
JUNE 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
BSD BOARD THURS 6/6 @ 8:00 AM – COMMUNITY HOUSE  
 
MAINTENANCE/CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS TUESDAY 6/11 @ 8:00 AM – CITY HALL 
 
SPECIAL EVENTS FRIDAY 6/7 @ 8:30 AM – CITY HALL 
 
MARKETING/ADVERTISING THURSDAY 6/13 @ 8:30 AM – CITY HALL 
 
BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT THURSDAY 6/27 @ 8:00 AM – CITY HALL 
 
EXECUTIVE WEDNESDAY 6/5 @8:00 AM – CITY HALL 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTE:  City Hall meeting location is second floor conference room 202-203. 
 

Notice: Individuals requiring accommodations, such as interpreter services, for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk's Office at (248) 530-1880 at least one day in advance of the public meeting. 

 
Las personas que requieren alojamiento, tales como servicios de interpretación, la participación efectiva en esta reunión 
deben ponerse en contacto con la Oficina del Secretario Municipal al (248) 530-1880 por lo menos el día antes de la 
reunión pública. (Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964). 


	Birmingham Shopping District Agenda
	Thursday June 6, 2019 - 8 a.m.
	The Community House380 South Bates Street, Birmingham, MI  48009

	June voucher and journal entry list.pdf
	6,181.75
	88.00
	29.33
	2,000.00
	700.00
	410.00
	477.40
	2,083.33
	500.00
	281.00
	656.00
	200.00
	1,200.00
	25.00
	3,050.00
	26,836.89
	4,500.00
	478.53
	2,483.00
	250.00
	275.00
	420.00

	8A Birmingham Magazine _Renaissance Media Cover Memo 2019.pdf
	8A Agreement.pdf
	INTRODUCTION
	REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP)
	INVITATION TO SUBMIT A PROPOSAL
	INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS
	EVALUATION PROCEDURE AND CRITERIA
	TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	PUBLISHER’S RESPONSIBILITIES
	BSD RESPONSIBILITY
	SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES
	INSURANCE
	CONTINUATION OF COVERAGE
	EXECUTION OF CONTRACT
	INDEMNIFICATION
	CONFLICT OF INTEREST
	EXAMINATION OF PROPOSAL MATERIALS
	PROJECT TIMELINE
	SCOPE OF WORK
	ATTACHMENT B - BIDDER’S AGREEMENT
	ATTACHMENT C - COST PROPOSAL


	8B WXYZ Cover Memo June 2019.pdf
	2019 WXYZ Sponsor Agreement.pdf
	SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT


	8A Birmingham Magazine _Renaissance Media Cover Memo 2019.pdf
	8A Agreement.pdf
	INTRODUCTION
	REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP)
	INVITATION TO SUBMIT A PROPOSAL
	INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS
	EVALUATION PROCEDURE AND CRITERIA
	TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	PUBLISHER’S RESPONSIBILITIES
	BSD RESPONSIBILITY
	SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES
	INSURANCE
	CONTINUATION OF COVERAGE
	EXECUTION OF CONTRACT
	INDEMNIFICATION
	CONFLICT OF INTEREST
	EXAMINATION OF PROPOSAL MATERIALS
	PROJECT TIMELINE
	SCOPE OF WORK
	ATTACHMENT B - BIDDER’S AGREEMENT
	ATTACHMENT C - COST PROPOSAL


	JUNE attendance report.pdf
	Sheet1




